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A FEW POLL QUESTIONS BEFORE WE GET STARTED

WHAT IS A VARIATION?
The circumstances in which variations might arise:
•

Instruction from the CA or Engineer

•

Change to drawings

•

Change in site / work management, methods and procedures

•

Employer requests

•

Instruction to expend provisional sums

•

Change in Statutory Requirements and Regulations

•

Contractor requests

•

Discrepancy in and / or between contract documents

WHAT IS A VARIATION? (CONTINUED)
• Agreed tender assumptions proven to be incorrect
• Unforeseen ground conditions
• Changes to the quantity of work
• Changes to the quality or characteristic of the work
• Changes to the loads, positions and / or dimensions
• Omission of work
• Additional work
• Changes to the sequence or timing

WHY DO WE NEED VARIATION PROVISIONS?
Variation provisions therefore provide several benefits to both parties in a construction contract,
including:
• Employer has flexibility to make changes to amend the project to get what it wants
• Effectiveness of the original contract is preserved
• Contractor is entitled to be compensated (both in time and money) for doing extra work
• Changes may be required to meet unforeseen circumstances or changed requirements
• A Variation is made under the contract, as opposed to a Variation to the contract

COMMON ISSUES
• Is the work instructed already included in the contract?
• Does the contract allow the Employer, its agents or employees, to instruct variations of the work itself?
• Can an instruction be given for work to be deleted or omitted?
• Is the Contractor entitled to be paid for a Variation?
• Are there any notice provisions?
• Has any condition precedent to payment imposed by the contract been fulfilled?
• How is any Variation to be valued?

WHAT IS A VARIATION (FIDIC 2017)
Under the Red and Pink Books a Variation is defined as:
“any change to the works, which is adjusted, instructed or approved as a variation under clause 13”
Under Clause 13.1 of the Red and Pink Books, a Variation can include:
• Changes to the quantities of any item of work
• Changes in the quality or characteristics of any item of work
• Changes to the levels, positions or dimensions of any item of work
• The omission of work (unless carried out by others)
• Changes to the quantities of any item of work
• Any additional work, plant, materials or services necessary for the permanent works
• Changes to the sequence or timing of the execution of the work

WHAT IS A VARIATION (JCT)
Variation:
Clause 5.1 – Variation means:
alteration or modification of the design, quality or quantity of the Works including;
1 - addition, omission or substitution of any work
2 – the alteration of the kind or standard of any of the materials or goods,
3 – the removal from site of any work executed or site materials other than work, materials or goods
which are not in accordance with the Contract.

Clause 5.2 – Variations (Provisional Sum):
Expenditure of Provisional Sums in Contract Bills (Defined/Undefined)

WHAT IS A VARIATION (NEC)
Changes are dealt with via Compensation Events, which are generated from an EWN (Clause 16), however,
an event may not warrant an EWN as it has already happened and therefore it may be classed as a CE
(Clause 60).
Clause 60.1 Provides for 19 Compensation Events, such as:
(1) PM gives an instruction;
(2) Employer does not give Access;
(12) The Contractor encounters physical conditions;
(13) Weather;
(18) Breach by the Employer;
(19) An event that stops the Contractor from completing the works;
Clause 61 - C must notify an event as a Compensation Event within 8 weeks of becoming aware of the
event.

WHAT IS A VARIATION (NEC)
C submits quotations within 3 weeks (clause 62.3) of being instructed to do so by the PM
The PM replies within 2 weeks of the submission with either (clause 62.3):
• An instruction to resubmit a quotation
• An acceptance of the quotation
• Notification that a proposed instruction will not be given
• Notification that PM will be making own assessment
NEC considers Employers and Contractors risks, E risks are compensable under the contract

METHODS FOR AN EMPLOYER TO INITIATE A VARIATION (FIDIC 2017)
Sub-Clause 13.1 of all the FIDIC forms of contract, allows the employer to either:
• Instruct a Variation, or
• Request the Contractor to submit a proposal in respect of a Variation
Under Sub-Clause 13.1 of the Red and Pink Books:
The Contractor is expressly prohibited from making any Variation to the permanent works unless the
engineer has instructed or approved a Variation
• There is no similar restriction in the Yellow, Silver and Gold Books

METHODS FOR AN EMPLOYER TO INITIATE A VARIATION (JCT)
Clause 5.3: A/CA seeks a Variation Quotation from the Contractor

Clause 5.3.2: Contractor is obligated to provide a quotation unless within 7 days the Contractor notifies
A/CA that he disagrees with the application of the instruction

Clause 5.3.3: Where a quotation is issued, A/CA issues a Variation Instruction, the QS shall make a
valuation of a fair and reasonable basis including direct loss and expense

METHODS FOR AN EMPLOYER TO INITIATE A VARIATION –
COMPENSATION EVENT (NEC)
Clause 61.1: PM/Contractor to notify within 8 weeks of becoming aware of event;
Clause 61.4: PM notifies the Contractor that the event is not a CE or to submit quotations;
Clause 62.1: Contractor submits quotations within 3 weeks of being instructed. Quotation to include for
direct cost impact and impact on programme;
Clause 62.3: PM replies within 2 weeks of C’s quotation, accepting, rejecting quote, or will be making PM
assessment;
Clause 65.1: PM notifies acceptance of Compensation Event.

PROCESS OF INSTRUCTING VARIATIONS (FIDIC 2017)
• The Employer is not entitled to instruct variations directly (except the Silver Book)
• Instead, the Employer must direct his instructions through the Contract Administrator (i.e. the Engineer
under the Red, Pink and Yellow books, and the Employer’s representative under the Gold Book)
• If the Employer was to make a direct instruction, it would not be valid and the Contractor would not be
bound to comply with it (except the Silver Book)

PROCESS OF INSTRUCTING VARIATIONS (FIDIC 2017)
• There is little guidance on how to instruct a Variation in any of the FIDIC forms of contract
• Sub-Clause 13.3 merely states that each instruction to execute a Variation shall be issued by the Contract
Administrator to the Contractor, who shall acknowledge receipt
• Under Sub-Clause 3.3 of the Red and Pink Books, an instruction must be given in writing whenever
practicable

PROBLEMS WITH THE TRADITIONAL CONTRACT APPROACH (FIDIC
2017)
FIDIC Red Book allows a variation instruction to be issued by an informal email (which does not state that
the document is a variation instruction)
Two main problems with this approach:
• Uncertainty for the Employer and Contractor
• Liability of the Engineer

UNCERTAINTY FOR THE EMPLOYER
• Any written communication issued by the Engineer (including any email) could be treated as a variation
instruction
• A contract will typically stipulate a notice period for ‘claims’ but not for variations (FIDIC Red Book takes
this approach)
• Therefore, no obligation to notify Employer immediately
• Difficult for the Employer to assess final cost
• Difficult for the Employer to decide about prospective variations
• Uncertainty for an Employer means uncertainty for a Contractor

UNCERTAINTY FOR THE CONTRACTOR
• Is the work instructed already included in the contract (i.e. not a variation)?
• If it is included in the original contract sum, the Contractor must carry it out at no extra cost
• The work must be described in some part of the contract documents or be reasonably inferred from the
documents to be included within the contract
• If it is not, claim as a Variation

WHAT IF VARIATIONS MUST BE INSTRUCTED IN WRITING?
• What if varied work has been carried out solely on the basis of an oral instruction, but the contract
stipulates that only orders in writing will be paid for?
• Is there evidence of any instruction in writing?
• If not, who gave the oral instruction?
• Was the Employer aware the varied work was being carried out, but said nothing at the time?
• Was there a signal from the Employer or its authorised representative that strict compliance would not
be required?
• Can the Contractor ignore an oral instruction?
• Good practice to promptly confirm oral instructions?

NEW FIDIC YELLOW BOOK (2017) VARIATION PROCEDURE
• The Variation procedure set out in Sub-Clause 13.3 has a greater degree of clarity and the clause has
been expanded
• In addition to the Engineer being able to request a proposal prior to instructing a Variation, an instructed
Variation must be by way of a Notice (with a capital ‘N’)
• This links to the new definition of “Notice” which provides that the Notice must ‘describe itself’ as a
notice, and can be issued in accordance with Sub-Clause 1.3 (Notices and Other Communications)
• Sub-Clause 1.3 includes various requirements for a valid Notice including a requirement to refer to the
relevant Sub-Clause under which it is issued
• The main purpose is to avoid uncertainty as to whether a particular communication is intended to be a
Variation instruction

VARIATIONS UNDER JCT

Programme
Clause 2.9.1 – As soon
as possible after the
execution of Contract,
Contractor shall provide
to A/CA the Master
Programme for
executing the Works,
identifying Critical Path.
Clause 2.9.2 – within 14
days of any decision,
Contractor shall provide
to A/CA amended
programme Notices

Variations
Clause 5.3.1 – A/CA
may instruct a
Variation and
Contractor is to
provide a quotation in
accordance with the
variation, unless
within 7 days the
Contractor notifies his
disagreement with the
instruction from A/CA.

Final Adjustment (Final Account)
Clause 4.5.1 – not later than 6
months after PC, Contractor
to provide detailed Particulars
Clause 4.5.2 – Not later than
3 months after receipt, A/CA
to make assessment of Final
Account.

Subcontract Conditions
Clause 4.6.1 – not
later than 4 months
after PC, S/C shall send
to Contractor detailed
Particulars
Clause 4.6.2 – not
later than 8 months
after receipt, C to
make an assessment
of Final Account

VARIATIONS UNDER JCT
Claims For Variations
• The Architect should issue such instructions as variations
• If not, the Contractor should acknowledge the instruction and confirm that he considers the instruction
to be a variation
• If the Architect does not issue a variation order, or some other acknowledgement that the instruction
comprises of a variation, then the Contractor is obliged to submit a notice and a claim

NEW ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (NEC)
The defined process to go through with each stage having prescribed timescales:

Implementation
(65)

Early Warning Notice
(16)

Identification
(60)

Assessment
(63/64)

Notification
(61)

Decision
(61)

Quotation
(62)

NEC CLAUSE 63 – SWITCH DATE
The defined process to go through with each stage having prescribed timescales:
Switch date

Actual Defined Cost
Project Manager
requests the
submission of a
quotation

PMI & CEN

Forecast Defined Cost
C’s quotation 3 weeks

PM’s reply 2 weeks

CONCLUSIONS AND SOLUTIONS
• Contracts need variation provisions
• Read and understand them and any amendments to the standard terms
• Check for any amendments including condition precedents
• Consider whether instructions are variations
• Comply and argue later, don’t stop working

CONCLUSIONS AND SOLUTIONS
• Be wary of omissions
• Oral instructions – confirm them in writing and comply
• Complying with contractual provisions for dealing with variations can become an administrative burden.
Ensure the project is set up correctly and that adequate RECORDS, RECORDS, RECORDS are being
maintained.

QUESTIONS?

CONTACT DETAILS

TELL ME MORE
To learn more about the ICCP please visit:
www.instituteccp.com.
For general enquiries please contact Nina
Hewitt-Tyrrell: nina.hewitt@instituteccp.com.
For membership specific enquiries please
contact: membership@instituteccp.com.

